
CITY OF SHOREVIEW 
MINUTES 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL WORKSHOP MEETING 
August 25, 2014 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Martin called the workshop meeting of the Shoreview City Council to order at 7:00 p.m. 
on August 25, 2014. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
The following attended the meeting: 
 
City Council:  Mayor Martin; Councilmembers Johnson, Quigley, Wickstrom and  
   Withhart 
 
Staff:   Terry Schwerm, City Manager 
   Fred Espe, Finance Director 
   Mark Maloney, Public Works Director 
   Debbie Maloney, Assistant Finance Director 
 
Ramsey County Beth Engum  
Public Works  Joe Lux 
   Heather Worthington, Deputy County Manager 
 
REVIEW OF DESIGN ALTERNATIVE FOR COUNTY ROAD I/35W INTERCHANGE 
 
Introduction by Public Works Director Mark Maloney 
 
In the process of considering potential TCAAP development impacts on transportation, the City 
has provided input about the need to keep the County Road I interchange with I-35W open.  To 
that end, Ramsey County has developed a concept plan that staff sees as a novel approach to 
address all of the concerns the City has put on record.   
 
Ms. Engum stated that the piece of TCAAP property closest to I-35W on the north currently has 
just one access at County Road H and another access is desired for local traffic and emergency 
access.  There is not a lot of traffic at the intersection of Old Highway 8 and County Road I; it 
serves the Federal Surplus Center and Driver Education Center.  Currently, Old Highway 8 is 
under state jurisdiction, and discussions are underway for it to be turned over to the County or 
City of Arden Hills.  There are few design choices to improve the intersection because it is so 
close to I-35W ramps and there is the constraint of the creek.  The current concept plan would be 
a one-lane roundabout to accommodate local traffic going to Arden Hills, Mounds View and 
Shoreview.  The roundabout incorporates the loop and northbound off ramp that currently exists.  
The ramp intersection of County Road I has been pulled into the intersection of Old Highway 8 
and County Road I.  There would be no changes to Rice Creek Parkway.   



SHOREVIEW CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING-AUGUST 25, 2014 2 

 
City Manager Schwerm identified the two concerns that the City has consistently expressed 
about the 35W-County Road I intersection: 1) maintaining the County Road I freeway off ramp 
and on ramp; and 2) potential use of Rice Creek Parkway as an access drive through TCAAP as a 
reliever route for people trying to access I-35W during rush hour.  Using Rice Creek Parkway 
would change the character of the road to a regional route and could have significant impact on 
residential land uses in the area.  However, this proposal best addresses the concerns of the City 
and maintains access from County Road I.  The biggest weakness of the design is that there will 
be no traffic signal for pedestrians. 
 
Councilmember Wickstrom asked if pedestrian bridges could be put in.  Ms. Engum stated that 
pedestrian bridges are not possible because of the drainage pattern and creek. 
 
Councilmember Quigley asked about possible difficulties in using roundabouts.  Ms. Engum 
explained that roundabouts have proven to be very safe and are more effective at reducing delays 
in comparison to a traditional intersection.  Mr. Lux noted that accident rates also go down.  Mr. 
Maloney added that the types of accidents that occur are low speed or side swipes.   
 
Councilmember Johnson asked if roundabouts have been used in residential neighborhoods and 
how they might impact a neighborhood.  Ms. Engum stated that no matter where roundabouts are 
placed, they are not designed for vehicles to travel faster than 20 to 25 mph.  Lower speed 
typically reduces accidents.  Mr. Lux noted that approximately 20% to 30% of roundabouts in 
Minnesota are in residential areas.   
 
Mr. Schwerm stated this concept plan is beneficial because it maintains the freeway access off 
County Road I that the City is most concerned about.  Traffic will increase on the road coming 
out of TCAAP as development occurs.  This plan provides access to the freeway and to the 
TCAAP site as well as emergency vehicle access.  Another road further east is still being 
discussed, but that will be considered later in the TCAAP development process. 
 
Councilmember Wickstrom asked if the Sheriff’s Department and Fire Department have 
reviewed this plan.  Ms. Engum answered they have not met with them yet.  Councilmember 
Wickstrom expressed great concern for pedestrian access.  There are turning movements that 
pedestrians do not see.  Children go to school at nearby Pinewood.  Walking or biking will mean 
accidents waiting to happen.  Mr. Maloney responded that there are over 200 roundabouts in 
Minnesota.  A lot of pedestrian data is being collected regarding roundabout crossings.  The 
current thinking is that pedestrian crossings are safer if they are moved away from the 
roundabout location.  Mayor Martin suggested that if there are no traffic lights, there may be 
some safety measures the City can implement to help pedestrians such as flashing lights. 
 
Mayor Martin agreed that this is a creative approach to address the City’s concerns.  She asked if 
an outlet from the east is planned onto County Road I.  Ms. Engum stated that if Fairview is 
extended, a left turn lane may be added to get people onto County Road I because it probably 
will not generate enough traffic to warrant a light.  
 
Ms. Heather Worthington arrived at this time of the meeting. 



SHOREVIEW CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING-AUGUST 25, 2014 3 

 
Councilmember Quigley asked if there is information on the amount of traffic when TCAAP is 
fully developed.  Ms. Engum stated that this concept plan is based on projected buildout.  Ms. 
Worthington added that there are 43 buildable acres on the northern “thumb” site.  It is estimated 
that there will be approximately 600,000 to 650,000 square feet of buildable office area.   
 
Councilmember Withhart agreed that this plan does address the City’s concerns but requested 
that a lot of thought be given to trail crossings.  There are many trails in Shoreview that are well 
used by residents. 
 
Councilmember Wickstrom suggested using the trail that is available on the other side of the 
creek that would not intersect with the roundabout.  Mr. Schwerm stated that many trails and 
sidewalks are being planned in the TCAAP site.  The more trails and sidewalks the better.  It is 
recognized that pedestrian access in a roundabout is more difficult and will be looked at further 
to identify the best locations for pedestrian crossings. 
 
Ms. Engum stated the next step is to meet with MnDOT and then schedule public input 
sometime this fall. 
 
Mayor Martin expressed her appreciation for the opportunity to review this plan.  A workshop to 
learn more details about TCAAP development will be scheduled further into the process. 
 
DISCUSSION REGARDING 2015 BUDGET MODIFICATIONS AND PROPOSED 
TAX LEVY 
 
City Manager Schwerm explained that with the legislative change this year, the preliminary City 
levy is not due until September 30, 2014.  However, the HRA levy is due September 15, 2014.  If 
needed there would be time for further discussion on the City levy at the September workshop. 
 
This is the second year of a biennium budget.  At adoption last year, the budget showed a 5.1% 
increase for 2015.  Updated information and adjustments have brought the levy increase down to 
3.52%.  The City’s taxable value has increased significantly by almost 11.5%, which means that 
the City tax rate will decrease by approximately 7%.  Fiscal disparities are projected to increase 
slightly. 
 
Councilmember Wickstrom noted a shift in tax increases from commercial to residential.  Mr. 
Schwerm explained that residential values have increased significantly.  Commercial property 
values have not risen as significantly as residential values which creates a shift in the property 
tax burden toward residential properties.  The median value home is increasing 10.2% this year, 
up to $247,500.  Even with that big jump, countywide residential values are still $8.4 billion less 
than in 2008.  In general, residential property values dropped much faster and more significantly 
than commercial values during the recession from 2008-2012.  Residential property values are 
now coming back.  
 
Councilmember Quigley added that with commercial property value being relatively flat a 
disparity is caused between commercial and residential.   



SHOREVIEW CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING-AUGUST 25, 2014 4 

 
Main Reasons for Levy Increase 
 
Mr. Schwerm referred to page 5 of the budget document and noted three main reasons for the 
levy increase.  First is the police cost that is up 4.9% which includes general costs of living 
adjustments, increases in PERA, replacement squad cars with upgraded equipment, and a 
replacement vehicle for an investigator.  Some of the new police equipment used to be funded 
through grants, but many of these grants are no longer available and those charges are being 
passed on to contract cities. The second major public safety cost increase is the Fire Department 
contract.  The City is on a six-year plan to implement a duty crew that provides 24/7 coverage.  
This program began in 2008.  The full 24/7 duty drew will be fully implemented in July 2015.  
That will mean paying half of the full cost in 2015 with a similar increase in 2016.  The increase 
with police and fire services is over $200,000.  That represents 2% of the recommended 3.5% 
budget increase.  After public safety costs, the next largest increase is in capital replacement 
(street renewal and fixed asset) funds and debt service.  Even though staff is recommending 
slight reductions in these capital replacement levies from the original projection, they still 
account for a $110,000 increase in the tax levy.  Therefore, public safety and capital replacement 
funds/debt service account for 3.2% of the recommended 3.5% increase to the preliminary tax 
levy. 
 
Mayor Martin stated that every year the City is getting caught by higher capital costs than 
projected.  Mr. Schwerm noted, however, that some projects are unplanned.  The Red Fox Road 
project was not in the Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  Although some of those costs were 
assessed, it was a $1.5 million project mostly paid for by the City.  This project resulted in the 
City transferring its full $400,000 surplus from the General Fund to Street Renewal in 2013.  Mr. 
Maloney noted that Red Fox Road is the heaviest traveled road in the City with peak traffic at 
lunch time between 11:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m.  
 
Park and Recreation Director Position 
 
Mr. Schwerm stated that one important policy issue to decide is funding the Park and Recreation 
Director position.  That position was scheduled to be put back in the budget the fourth quarter of 
2014.  It is not included in order to keep the recommended increase at 3.5%.  It is difficult to 
make a recommendation to fund that position, when public safety is so critical.  He will continue 
to provide administrative support to the Park and Recreation Commission.   
 
Councilmember Johnson asked at what point it may be unsustainable to not have a Park and 
Recreation Director.  Mr. Schwerm agreed that the position needs to be budgeted at some point, 
but he does not plan to make that recommendation until the City has absorbed costs for full 
implementation of the Fire Department duty crew.  The new recreation program staff person that 
was hired is full time and is managing a number of different programs.  He believes that at this 
time current park and recreation staffing is at a sustainable level. 
 
Mayor Martin stated that park and recreation numbers are good, and she commended City 
Manager Schwerm for his ability to manage the position of Park and Recreation Director in 
addition to being City Manager and considering he has been without an assistant for almost 8 



SHOREVIEW CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING-AUGUST 25, 2014 5 

months.  It is her hope that there will be a significant Community Center expansion when, she 
believes, additional staff may be needed.   
 
Comcast 
 
Mayor Martin noted that the budget does not now reflect the Council’s recent decision to 
discontinue the City’s membership in North Suburban Communications Commission (NSCC).   
 
Councilmember Wickstrom stated that the money from franchise fees will not change.  What 
will change is how the money is spent.  Capital costs will come out of PEG fees in the future.  
Staff time should be covered by franchise fees, but she does not anticipate that the budget will be 
significantly impacted. 
 
Mr. Schwerm stated that the current $70,000 fee paid to NSCC will not need to be paid.  AS 
Councilmember Wickstrom noted, PEG fees can be negotiated with Comcast and will be used 
for capital expenditures.  Equipment will be needed for broadcasting Council and Planning 
Commission meetings.  Equipment will also be needed for webstreaming on the website for 
Council meetings.  Those costs will likely be covered through PEG fees.  Costs for additional 
staff time are not known.   
 
Councilmember Quigley stated that handling this media work will grow and get better, which 
could impact the budget.  Mr. Schwerm stated that there are ways to contract for broadcasting 
various events, such as the Slice of Shoreview parade or Community band concerts.  He does not 
anticipate that broadcasting costs will take up the full $70,000 in savings.   
 
Councilmember Withhart stated that there will probably be at least a $25 savings per year on 
resident Cable bills, but it is important for the City to not be short changed and make sure that 
negotiated PEG fees cover capital costs. 
 
Councilmember Wickstrom noted that residents will not get Channel 15, but they will get 
Channel 16.  Comcast became aware of a letter going out from the League of Minnesota Cities 
and has decided to extend an additional two months on the transfer.  That will relieve the time 
pressure, and the City may have more information about the merger. 
 
Wages 
 
Mr. Schwerm referred to page 2 and stated that he is hearing that many cities are increasing 
wages by 2.5%.  His recommendation is 2% with further consideration for raising wages to the 
2.5% level, if it is needed to maintain a competitive wage structure.  Another reason for 2.5% 
wage increases would be to mitigate, to some extent, an expected big increase in health 
insurance.  Health insurance may increase as much as 20%.  Health insurance premium increases 
are not yet known. 
 
Mayor Martin stated that since a 2.5% increase would be a net of $15,000 to $16,000, she would 
support putting that in the budget now.  There would still be the flexibility to reduce it.  She 



SHOREVIEW CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING-AUGUST 25, 2014 6 

noted that the City has extraordinary, long-term employees.  Just this week there were employees 
who worked all night following a small fire. 
 
Councilmember Quigley stated that he would support wage increases at 2.5%.  He noted that the 
City receives many awards, which reflects on the performance of staff.  
 
Councilmember Johnson stated that employees do not just work for money but work in a good 
culture that has been built up by management.  That culture inspires them to do their best, and it 
is not just about money.  
 
It was the consensus of the Council to put 2% in the budget, but staff will work to find funds to 
raise it to 2.5% by the next workshop budget discussion. 
 
Community Survey 
 
Mayor Martin questioned the $13,000 budgeted for the Community Survey.  Mr. Schwerm 
responded that the Community Survey is planned every other year.  A full 200 question survey 
was just done.  A shorter survey should be done to hit key budget benchmark areas, so that the 
budget is based on updated data.  The longer, full survey is budgeted in off years from elections.  
 
Councilmember Quigley suggested that for the shorter survey version, a question be added to 
ask:  What do you like; what would you like changed; and is there anything else you would like 
to say?  He agreed the survey should be done regularly.  
 
Fund Balances 
 
Mr. Schwerm referred Councilmembers to fund balances and noted that the Fixed Asset 
Revolving Fund takes a dip in 2015, but there may be items in the CIP that can be delayed. 
 
Mayor Martin asked if, with this budget, the City is on track to maintain its current AAA bond 
rating.  Mr. Espe stated that bond agencies look to make sure the City has funded capital 
expenditures, and they look at accessible funds in order to meet debt if something were to 
happen.   
 
OTHER ISSUES 
 
EDA Candidate Interviews 
City Manager Schwerm suggested that the entire Council participate in interviewing candidates 
for the EDA vacancy.  It was the consensus for the Council to attend the EDA meeting and 
participate in the interviews. 
 
Metro Water Supply 
Councilmember Wickstrom reported that three solutions are being considered by the 
Metropolitan Council regarding water supply: 1) Have five cities stop using ground water and 
use water from the St. Paul Water Utility; 2) add up to 9 or 10 cities using water from the St. 
Paul Water Utility; and 3) directly augment White Bear Lake with Mississippi water.  Shoreview 



SHOREVIEW CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING-AUGUST 25, 2014 7 

is proposed as one city to be mandated to use the St. Paul Water Utility.  She expressed concern 
about any such mandate for Shoreview because Shoreview’s aquifer water level is not dropping 
significantly.  With some conservation, that level can be kept steady.  Why spend a lot of money 
for very little benefit?   
 
Mayor Martin stated that the Council may need to meet with the City’s entire legislative 
delegation to discuss this issue. 
 
Announcements 
 
Mayor Martin announced that on the following day there will be a ribbon cutting at the 
Playground for Everyone at 6:00 p.m.  Wednesday at 12:00 is the employee recognition. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:00 pm. 
 
 
 
 


